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We again extend our apprec:btion for meeting with us on I kccmher 14 :rnd for c.-ircfolly 
considering the issues we have raised both at th:H meeting :md in our ~11hmis~ion~ tu ~:our Ollie..:. 
I lavini;. n:ccivcd your kller of lkc~·mbcr l ~J. ,.,·c can sec that you h~n:l." made. a signifo.:.mt dforl 
to address our concerns regarding the § '.'!::!55 portion of the non-prosecution agreement (the 
··Agreement'"_). nnd we recognize ch.ii y(lu lmn: prop<is'-:d some suhstm1tial and impClrtanl 
modilicati,ms. Respectfully, however. I w(iuld sugl_!csl 1h~11 your proposal r,tiscs several 
trnuhling questions that rcqltirc carcfi.tl cnnsidcrntion. Wt: ~1rc authoring this lt'ltc:r lo respnnd tn 
your request that \W set forth our position rcg,1rdi11g ~* 2255 aud ]77 J as qui<.'.kly as possibk. 

/\s \VC hnvc aJI discovered. the problem of intcgraring i11 an unprcccdcnkd manner v.-fo11 

is al its core a $150.000 minimum lump s111n damag.c federal dvil statute ( § 2255 in its current 
fonn) into a federal dclcm:d/non-prosccution agrt!cmt:nl that requires pleas of guilty to state 
criminal offenses that arc corrdatcJ to st:.1tc criminal rcstitution statutes hut not to ,•1 llisparntc 
lt--dcral civil non-restitution stmu1c h~,s provec.l very challenging. The concomitant proMcm of 
how fairly to implement 1hc § 2255 portions l)f the ,\greemcnl su thal n.:al victims. if any. who in 
foci .su11l:rc<.I ··personal injury as a r~sull nf f.1hcl viobrion.. if any of specified li.:dcral 
criminal statutes such n:- I~ U.S.C. § ~422{b) arc placed in thi.: same p<)sition as if there had been 
a trial and conviction also rcquir'-'S :;crious and careful con.sjder~tlion. In this lt:tll:r. T want to 

higbJighl .some spceifo: conc~rns. Sc,· ,,/:,o Whith:y Opininn. 

f<in,t, your propo:-al regarding tht..: * 2:255 r'-'.mcdy provasions continues I(> ask 11:- ro 
assume that 1:.·ach and every wom:in not only ,vas ~, victim under* :2255. hul that the fact,; alleged 
t~Otild have been provt:n In satisfy each dcrm:.-111. nf either ~ ~.:l]:!(b) (lhl'. Internet luring statute) 
or~ 241., (the scx-lourism s1~1tu1c). within* 2255 of Titk IR. /\hlwug.h we have been denied th(: 

Ctur.ago London Munich San Franci!;CO War.hington, O.C. 
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lisl of :.ilkgcd --victims'" {and l;1d Jdinitiv\! information as lo whid1 lclkr.tl :-.lnluh.:s would :,,;~rvc 
:,s :-1 predicate for each particular alleged victim°I. or even a tinn number ,-ts to how many you 
sugg\!sl thai; an.:. \.,·c strongly believe th:ll lhc ,,r,H•,:,b/,! conduct of Mr. t-:pslcin with rcspc!CI to 
th~:sc individuals foils lo satisfy 1hc: rc4uisilc clcmcnts of cithcr 18 USC § 2422(b) (whid1 we 
understand fwm prior di~us::.ions I(• be the principal prcdic:,ti.: offense upon which the § 'l'):55 
provisions rdy) or Jg USC ~ 2423(b) (anC11bcr pn:dicalc of~ 22.5) rhut. has hccn the suhjcel of 
discussions between the p:1rties). Sec Stt'rn Opinion. Wt:. hdievc th:.1t tht.: probkrn arises from 
thi.! incongruity tha1 exists when .sltempting I<) lit :1 Jcdcrnl civil remedies stntutc i111n n criminal 
ph::a agn:emcnt. /\gain. I note th~t this prnbkm could have been .avl)ided had Lhc ~owrnmcnl 
opted instcud for a restitution fund a:-- we suggcstcu. 

Our knnwlctl~e of the ··JisC of allc.:gcd , ·ic.:1im!:i i:s limited liowcvcr a prototypical 
cxmnplc or n witness whom the ~m•ernmcnt has requested ,w compensate and we hdieve is 
iuaccuratdy labd..::d as a --viclim·· of a li.:dcral crime is whom we hnvc hc.:cn told 
n:mains on the govcrnmcnt"s "li:st .. .,, Thl: lrnn:script or her intcrvi1,;w with the Palm lkach l'olic~ 
ovcf ;-a ycrir before the Flil hccamc involved in any invt:stigation shows that Ms. -
admittl:.'d to lying atmut. her age. th.it shi.: <lid not c11g;1gc in scxm,I inh.:rnuir:-1.: with Mr. Fpsl\:in. 
and th~,, she was ne::..,·~r induced over the tdcphonc. computer or any olhcr tlll:ans of 
cum111u11ication required by § 2422(h). In fact. ~ts. ~ amc to Mr. t--:pstcin"s home on 
only on< occasion. She teslilied th.it shew-as inl,,rrn~\: opportunity lo gi\'c a mas:;ugc 
to Mr. l·:pstcin not on a telephone.:. C<unputcr or :my other facility of inter.state commerce. hut 
rather in a faci:-to-focc Jiscus~ion with a rhird party who was h\:r fri..:nd (Ms. - and who 
tnld her lo lie to Mr. Epstein ahout her age. As such. it is simply impossibh~horn this 
c.:wK.lul·t into .my t,r the ~,bon~•discussc:d federal st;11lltcs. 

In :'lddirion. Mr. Epstein did not know of Ms. - bdi.)rc she :-actually cnmc to his 
laHnc. did 1t0I inducl.! or persuade her Lo come.,· ,hon~pc::ik In her nt all by phoni: pri,,r 
to her visit. did nnl induce or persuade Ms. lo bring an underage girl lo his residence, 
and <lid not ()thcrwisc ..,-iol.itc either l"hc fcdc. , c ~ 2422(b) nor the lr:l'-'cl for the purpn~ 
statute ~ 2423(b). Indeed. in her statement. Ms. - testified: .... I lalcy told me to s.1y I w3s 
I fC hccau~ Haley said ... ir you·r~ not then h~ ~-.von·t re:.1lly l~t you in his how~. So I 
said I was 18:· -,worn Statc111cn1 at J~-J!>). In f;ict. there is no evidence th.it Mr. 
Epstein cxpccti:d ~c girl LO vi:.it him prinr to his regular travel to Florida. his home (lf 
liftci.:n years. Thus the tr:wd could nnt have been for the purpose of having illegal sexual 
cunlacl mu.I * 242}(b) is no murc a~·ail;;ibk as ~1 pn:dicak for § 2255 recovery lh:.tn is § 2422(h). 
Ne\'er having reached the threshold violations enumerated under of§ ::!255. Ms. - would 
s1ill huvc 1(1 Jnwc thut she :mllcrcd :1 p..:rsonal injur~·- Furlhcr. unknown to M~ ;.it the 
time, Ms. cprcscnh.:d hersdf tci be 18 not only to him but ~,l:;o to the public on her web 
page whch: . . cct ,1 nude phoro clearly l11oking ;11 least IN yc:1rs old. 

At the Dccemhcr 14 llll'eling. we also discw,sed as l!mblcmatic of our 
c11ncerns surrounding lh1.: govcrnmcnl".(; selection ,,r ·:viclims: · As yuu arc aw.ire. Ms. -
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December 1 1, 2007 
J>agc:, 

was idcnliii~<l in pn:viou!'- c-orrcspondcm:c as a pl'rS<:•n who remained on 1hc Gov,:nuncn(s lisl of 
·•vic1i111s·· even after (at least acc.nrding hl l'v1.s. Villafana·s Idler) lh~ lisl was subjected lo careful 
mulLi-parly rcvic,-\.·. Ms .. ■■■ls,-n1m stah:mc111 dearly rdh::cls lhc foci th:st she is not a 
--vii.:tim'" under ~ 2412(b). She plainly admits lh~tl sh': suffered no injury; lhc cone.Juel \V~ts 

consensual: she lii:d to ~•1r .. f:pstcin ahnut her age: :-ihc in::.rructcd l)lhcrs 10 lie ahout their ilgcs: 
there was no scxu:.1I conlacl oclwccn herself and Mr. l.;p::.tcin al any 1imc: and thl!rc \Vas never 
any inducement nvcr the telephone. computer or through any other means of inlerslalc ,:ommcrcc 
We ask lhal you t:onsidcr lhl: mo!-t rckvant highlights from her testimony r,fforcd bdow: 

• Consent 

• 

• 

A : I said. I told Jcfln:y. J heard yuu like massa~c:; topless. And hc·s lih·. yeah, he 
S[1id . hut you dnn·r have to do an:,1hing th;n you don't lt:d comfortable v.ilh. And I 
$:-1i<l okay. b111 I willingly look it off. (_ ·wom St.lfCllll~llt :it 10) 

I .icd About l-lcr Age 

A: .. . I had a fak1.: JD anyways. saying that I wa.c; 1 g_ AtHi she jusl said make sur~ 
yo~1·rc IS b~i.:ausc .lc:ffrcy <locsn't wanl any un<lcrngc girls. - Sworn Sl,1lcml~n1 

.it S} 

/\ : .. . or l~l'n1rs1.: . he thnught l \~:ls I K .. (-Sworn Stntcmcnt :1t I '.l) 

I nslrnctl-,1 Otht.'r.'- fo Lie About Their A~c.~s 

/\ : . .. I would tell my gjrlfricnds just like approached me. Make sure you 
t.cll him you're I 8. Well. these girls lhat I h .. know that lhey wen: 1 Hor 19 or 
20. And the girls tlmt I didn't know ,md I lion·, know ff th-..:y ,wn.: lying or not. I 
would say make sure th:d you ldl hitu you·n.· 18. - Swom Statement :U 2:!) 

(): I Jc never pulled you closer to him in a sc~unl way'! 

A : I wish. No, no, ncvi.:r, i.:v1,;r. L:\-'l:r, no. nc...-i.:r. .kffrcv 1s an awesome man, no. 
~ ,vom St.1tcmcnl al ~ I ) 

No lnduccnu.•nf 

/\: No. I g.:ivc Jeffrey my number. /\nd I said. you know. nny time you wnnt ml.! to 
1!,ivc you a nwssa!_!c again , I'll mnrc 1ha11 wckomc w. -S\\'lWll Shll~meut al 8) 
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Kl RKLAND &. ELLIS LLP 

A: E vcrv ~irl 1h.1t l hrou~ht to Jcffrc,·. tlu.:v s~1ic..l thcv wi:r\.' Ji11c with ii. ,\n<l likc. fr,r 
.. • • --- J ., .. 

insrnncc. ;1 lot of girls begged inc to bring them back. 
They ,...,·ante · tu come ;ic • or And as for as I know. we all had fun lhac. 
~worn Stakmc:nl ..tl 45) 

The sworn lcstinwny ul ·01itains explicit dcnic115 fro111 the ~llcgcd "victitn'' 
hcrsdf that she sufli.:rcd :tlly physic.-ll. cmNion~I. 1.lr pcrS\>nal in_jury a-; required by the express 
l:mguagc of* 225.5 . 1-'ttrrhcr, rhe sworn testimnny of Ms. -contains a c,;omplt=le disavowal 
th.ti Mr. Epsh:in or anyonc on his bd1:.df used .1 facility of intcn;t::itc conuncrcc lo knuwiugly 
.rcrsundc . coerce. ~nticc. or induce her 10 eng.1g.c in ~c!xual offense!:- as required by § 24'.?2(b). 
t .ik1.:\vis1.:, 1hc transcript provi<l1.:s no hasis f4.,r a § 242J(h) violation in that Mr. Epslcin had " 
n:siucn1.:c in Palm lkach for o\'er 10 years at the tim.c of these events. traveled to Palm lk,ich for 
:-, n1yrind of li::gitim:itc reasons ranging from medical nppnintmenL~ Lo husiness appointment-. 
havinl; nothing to c.lo with a sc~ual ol,jc.:ctivc, and could not bi.: kgally dmrgc,;d with lravding tu 
his own home particularly in the abs1:ntL· of ,tny prnv.ibk 11cxus bl!twccn th1.: travd :Hid ~t 

domin;,111 purpose to engage _in illicit sexual conduct. Although Ms. Villafana inrormt!d u.,; 
Jurin~ the OcccmhL·r 14 rm.:cting 1ha1 slu.: had a tdcphulll: toll n:cunl showing au out-of-state c,tll 
to or frorn Ms ..... phone ton pnnnc number associated with Mr. Ep~t.cin. such n record fails 
"" rrovc thi.: c,~ 1hc call. 1111.: idcnlitv of th~ communiculors. whether the call discussed or 
n::sullc<l in a plan li..1r M:s. -lo vi~it Mr. Epstein':; n:sidt.:ncc. whi.:thcr .my inuuccmcnl 
occ111Tcd nn the out of state call or. more impnnantly for purposes of tht: St!X tourism statute. 
\\'hclha any Lran:I was pli.lnm;J to flori<la or n.:sultcd fro111 thi.: pltonc call. Ms. -
testimony i~ that :-he believed th:u at :my time she was called by Mr .. Epstdn or anyone on his 
bd,alL Mr. Epstci11 was aln::1dy in Florid.t. She .~lso testified to the absence of any .sc:<ual 
contact other 1han topless 111,1ssag:es (l(lpless massages :ire lawful in flm;da al age I,;_ unlcs:. c.he 
definition or prostitution i!-i unnaturally cxpam.Jcc..l). A complclc transaipt ur the lcdcrnl interview 
of Ms.-ia.s pn.:viousl~· b1.·cn provided to you. 

Y 1)ur wish tn pu1 these wf,mcn in the same pnsition as they would hove been lmd tlll.:rc 
been ..i t'ctkral 1.:onviction as.-.umcs thc:v an.• each lcuitimatc vklims of at l~ast one nf the IW<• - ~ • 
specific,; fl:dcral crimes enumerated under § 2255. ·we rcsru•ctfullv hav~ tn disa!!,rt!c ,vi1h I.hat .. ,,- ., ... 
assump1io11. and even your current tc)1·1nulation of § 2255 would prcjudkc Mr. Epskiu in thi:. 
n:g,ar<l. 

Sl~cond. your prt,posal also cl1ccl ivdy deprives Mr .. Epstein of hi=> i)ppo11unity to test tbc 
validitv of thL,sc womens · daims cl:iim!I thut would h~1vt: be~n exlensivdv tested ~t trial. In - -
lighL of whal we have alrc.•;1dy learned ahout ·md ......... is iriappropriak 
to c.kny Mr. . Epstein anc.l his counsd the riµhl to t<:st the merit!;~ womctls· cases. 
in order ro verify th:,1 they in foct suffered "pcr!-onal ir~jury" :.lS required hy § 2255 and to assess 
'"·h1.:tlu:r they an.: in fot:1. victims of any violations of§ 2422(b) or* 2423(b) as .-dsu rl."tJUin:d hy 
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§ 2'255 . (iivcn your Otfo.:c ·s informing us lhut l~ rc111aincd on a reduc~d list of foci~ral 
·•victim~·· an~i tiven our umkrslanding that Ms. -as w~II was om:_ o!· ll10sc who_ is a_bo 
on the 11::; l of p1.:rsons the Uovcrnmcnl contends were v1clm1s of Mr. Epstein .s :1lkg<:d v1olat1on 
of frdcral k,w. we have a principled conct'm ahoul ~1<.lopting )"lHtr rccommcnclcd lan~uagc which 
would lcav~: Mr. l:pstcin without a husis to challenge the good faith prcmist." or an application to 
rCCO\'t."T $ J 50.000. 

Third, the /\grccmcm. even if modified in ,\ct:ord with your l)cccmb~r 19 lc.:ltcr. woultl 
put the witnesses in a bdlcr position limn ff Mr. Epstein h.id been tcctcrally prosecuted rather 
tlrnn in an equal position and. in fact, encourages the wilm:sses In make.: unfounded claims with 
impunity. Had there been a conviction. lhc.::sc women would hrwc been thoroughly cross• 
examined. for the:: ve::r.1,:ity of their st~1tcmcnts. their: ,rcdibility and the foundalion~. if ,my_ t,,r 
d ~1iming per:-onal iitiury. Also. Mr. 1:pstein would ha\'t: reet:iw<l, pursuant lo either Br.u.ly or 
.lt:ncks. m;,Haial in the form uf prior inconsistc.:nt s1atc.:1m:nts mndc hy these women before they 
learned of any tinanci:JI ~ndit that may he ~w~lilablc.: to thcm--cvidcncc th,lt should he: 
~~rnsi<lcrc<l in dckrmining lhl: credibility of their application for a suhstanti~,I civil rc.::covcry. 
r urlh\.'..nnorc::. Mr. Epstein woul<l be without the me,tn:, lo chullcng.l: whether the cloim:ml could 
make nut a prima facic c:1se 1h~11 she w,1s a victim of a violation by Mr. Epstein or§ 2422(b) or 
any other kderal stalulL'--·a dc.:nial of his rights that tvould insulate potential claimants such as Ms. 
- and Ms. 11111111111111 from any challenge un this ckmcul cv1.·n if under other circumstances n 
challenge woul~ a summnry judgment in Mr. Epstein 's favor unde::r feel. R. Civ. P. 56. 
Lastly . th1.: mo<lifo.:.d langu..1g1.· 1-ccomnkmlcd by you presupposes th.it ~-1r. 1--:pstein would h,wc 
been charged an<l convicted or substantive violations rather than chm·µeJ and convicted oJ' a 
1.:onspirney alkgation. (.'onspi1";1cy convictions ;m: not amongst lht'.' prcdiet1tes enumcrjtcd by 
§ 2255 and do not. without more, result in th<: h:-t'iis l<•r a Jckrmin:tlion of --personal injury'·. 
Si11<.:c our rc,p1csl tn view the drafc indictment was rejected on December 14. ,,1,·e have no m~ans 
lo know what il containcu by '''"Y of allegations. 

f'ourCh, I want 10 respond to several stat.cmcnt._ in your letter that we helieve require 
imrnctli:Hc correction. With rciard 10 your lirsl footno1c. I want to he ahsolutdy clear. We u(, 

1101 hdicvc for one moment that you had prior knowledge of the AtJSA ·s attempt to require us to 
hire th1.: fricn<l of her livc~in bo_yfricn<l. anl.l p:ly his kcs ,m a contingency b~1sis to sue Mr. 
Epstein. We: realize you corrected thJ1 irrc:gular situation as soon as you discovered ii. We 
thou~h1 I.his was prccipilah,:d hy our complaint. hut have nu real knowledge a~ to the liming or 
cvcnls. Furthermore, your letter als<.., suggests that our ol~jcc.tion lo your OJlicc·s propuse<l 
victim~ notitic;it.inn lcncr was that the women idemified as victims of federal crimes should not 
be notilicd ol' the st.ate proccc«Jings. Thai is not true. as our pn.:vious letter clearly states. Pulling 
aside our threshold contention that many of those to whom 377 l notific,,ti<)n letters arc intended 
arc in fact n,'lt , ·ictims as defined in the Attorney (ienernl' s 2000 Victim Witness (iuidelincs---u 
status re4uiring physical. emotional or pecuniary injury of the Jdcm.l:mt.---il wi.1s ,uu.l remains our 
po~ition th.it these women may he notified of such proceedings bur since they arc neither 
witnc:sscs nor victims lo lhe stalc.:: prnscculion of 1his math: r. lhcy should not be informed of 

RFP MIA 000045 
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fictitious ·•rig.his" or invited to make sworn writkn <,r in-court h.:stimoniul stak1m:11t:; ag.1inst Mr. 
Epstein at such proct:~dings. as Ms .. Villafana repeatedly maintained they hm.1 lhi= right to do. 
A<l<lition:.1lly, it wa.s an<l remains our 1,osit.ion that any nolilicatinn should he: hy mail and that :ill 
1'>ro:1cti\'C efforts by the FBI to have communications with tht.· wilncssc::; a lier the cxccutiun ()f the 
AQ.rccmcm should lin:11lv come to an end. We a!:!.rcc. however. \Vith vnur Oecemher 19 .... .. - ,, 
moditic.tlion of thc previously draltcd federal nntilication lclkr and agn:c that the tkcision {IS to 
who cnn he heard at a state sentencing is. amongst many other issw.:~. properly \.\'tthin the ae!;,iS 
of :state decision making. 

'l<1ur Ot:ct:mhcr 19 kiter rd~rcnccs l'rofossor Dcrshowilz·s 111.1s1t1011 on the 
inapplicability of Floridii Swtutc § 79<,.0.,. Prol't:ssor fJcrshowitz made ~uch Mgurncnts in the 
c.ontext of saying that he had been unable lo <li:iccm. atkr grc,·tt effort. and supported by years of 
experience._ nny basis for the application of § 24:::?::!(h) or other fe<l~ral sex slalutes Lo Mr. 
Epstein's com.lucl and that the fodcral statute::; rct1uircd more of a .stn:tch lo fit the fact:- than the 
proposed st.ate statute to which l'vfs. Villafana wanted Mr. Ep:;tcin 10 plc~1d. J>roli:ssor 
Dershowi.tz also stull.:d thnt 1\-b. Villafoun hnd represented th:>t it was she who had the fact<; to 
si1ppor1. hoth the threatened !~demi charges o!' § 24:22 and/or ~ 2423 and the pwpo~cd stale 
charge of§ 796.03 (which the parties understood ro he the stale ch~irg.c of soliciting a minor. as 
Ms. Yillal:.um·s last letter clearly states). Only last week we learned for the first time that Ms_ 
Vilfofa11a did nm realize that the char!!,e wa.s· adually lc.,r .. procuring•· not ··.soliciting". Thc 
drnrgc (a pimp statute) of pmcuring a pros1i1u1c (i1r a 1hird pnrty for financial gmn i.s one for 
whid1 Ms. Villafana now stales $ht.• dtlcs not have llu.: focts to support. 

1-'urthcrmnrc. you suggest that \Ve have purposefully ddaycd lhc tfatc of Mr .. Epstein ·s 
,,lea and sentencing in bn:ach of the Agreement and now seek an •• I I th hour .ippc(ll .. in 
Wnshington. l believe we have .>lready responded L<.l this o~jcction satisfactorily, holh in our 
discussion carlkr this week and in the cmuil I sent to you two days ago in which I spccilic..illy 
addre.-;sed this issue. Indeed. any impediment lo the n:solution al issuc is ~1 dirct;l c~tusc uf the 
disagrccrncnt:- hdwccn the parlics m; 10 a common intl~rpretation of the /\grccmcnt. and we have 
~tl all times made and will continue to make sincere dforts to resolve and finalize issues as 
expeditiously ns possihlc. In fact, since the initiation <lf negotiations hclween Mr .. Epstein ·s 
counsel and yuur Oniec. wc haH: always proccc1.kd in ~, timdy mum1t.·r mu.I made se,·cral efforts 
to meet with the attorney:- in your Office in person when we believed that a fact=-lo-face meeting 
would fadlilatc a resolution. 

Finally, the sugg~slion hy your slaff !hut you hold 1vfr. Epstein in hreach of the 
Agreement by his failur~ to pica and he scmcnccd on Oct0lx:r 26. 2007 is directly contradicted 
by Mr .. Sloman's c-maH to me dah:J October 31 in which he s1a11.:s. --Your understandin!.!. from . ~ 

.lm:k fioldhergcr conforms Lo my understanding th~1l Mr.. Epstein· .s plea :md sentence will take 
pl:tc(; on thc ~.um: d,1y. J unJcI"!-l~md that the pica :mu scnlem:c will occur on or before the 
.lan~ry 4th date.'· This has been our common undcrscanding for some time. which we hnv~ now 
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reiterated scvt.~ral limes. With tJrnl said. plc"st.: be ~JviscJ 1hat wc an: w~lrk inµ for a quick 
rcs()lution and dn not s~t:k lo delay th~ pwc~t=dings. 

Thank you :1gain for your time ~mt.I considcr;1tion. We look forwarJ lo your rcspoll!>C lo 
the concerns we have raised that hnvc not yet been ::iddrcs!-cd. 

l \,.-jsh you a very happy and a healthy new year. 

Sino.:rcly. 

cc : Honorable /\lice Fi:shc.:r. :\:s:si:,t;mt J\ttorm:y Gcnc.:ral 
.Jeffrey 11. Sloman. First As:-ist,rnt U.S . . ·\ltorney 


